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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Jubilant Generics Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Jubilant Generics Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions as required under applicable laws
and regulations.

Pirizibinme THAES
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on

i
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the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

a)

b)

<)

d)

€)

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a)

b)

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 30 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company

A
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d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

= directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall:

= directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii)Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Kirm's Registration No.101248W/W-100022

Manish Gupta
Place: Delhi Partner

Date: May 26, 2022 Membership No. 095037
UDIN: 22095037AJRKWR6299
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements of Jubilant Generics

Limited

(Referred to in our report of even date)

(1)

(i)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical
verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment
are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this
programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. As informed to us, certain discrepancies noticed on such
verification were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than
immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of
the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant
and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been
physically verified by the management during the year. For stocks lying with third parties at
the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent
evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency of
such verification is reasonabl®wand procedures and coverage as followed by management were
appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and
the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial instjtutions on the
basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by
the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of

account of the Company.
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(iif)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments,
provided any guarantee or security, granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the
year. The Company has renewed loan to one company during the year, details of the loan is
stated in sub-clause (B) as below. The Company has not provided any loans, secured or
unsecured, to firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year

A. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not granted any loan during the year to parties other than one
fellow subsidiary.

B. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date with respect to a loan renewed to one fellow subsidiary is as below:

In INR million

Particulars Guarantees | Sccurity Loans Advances in
nature of loans

Aggregate amount
during the year

- Subsidiaries
- Joint ventures
- Associates

- Others - - 7 B
Balance
outstanding as at
balance sheet date

- Subsidiaries
- Joint ventures
- Associates

- Others = = 7 -

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loan given is, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given (including loan renewed
during the year) in earlier years, in our bpinion the repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated. As stipulated, there was no repayment or receipt due during the
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

year. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during
the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety
days in respect of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature
of loans to any party during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion following instances of loans falling
due during the year were renewed or extended or settled by fresh loans:

In INR million
Name of the Aggregate amount dues renewed or Percentage of the
parties extended or settled by fresh loans aggregate to the total

loans or advances in the
nature of loans granted
during the year

Jubilant Draximage 7.00 100%
Limited

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as
specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). In respect of
loans granted and the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Section 185 and 186 of the Act, as applicable, have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured goods (and/or services provided by it) and are
of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether these are accurate or complete.

(a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’),
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other
statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax (‘GST’), Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of
Customs, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no dues relating to Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except as
mentioned below:

Amount | Amount paid | Financial
involved* | under protest year
= Forum where
Name of the Statute RATUNEIof 10 wiliich dispute is
the Dues | (Rs. in (Rs. in the e
million) million) amount P g
relates
High court,
3.59 : 201031 Uttarakhand
Central Excise Act, Excise Deputy
1944 Duty Commissioner
0.05 i 20212 (Excise),
Dehradun
Joint
. Commissioner,
Central Goods and (S:I;(‘),?seind 1.80 I il Commercial Tax
Services Tax Act, 2017 Tax (Appeal)
Deputy
5.67 L=k 2RiIgel Commissioner

*amount as per demand orders including interest and penalty, wherever indicated in the order.

(viii)

(ix)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.
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x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as
defined under the Act.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries (as defined under the Act).

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

A
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(xvi)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company,
the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any Core Investiment Company. For reporting on this clause
/ sub clause, while we have performed the audit procedures, we have relied on and not been
able to independently validate the information provided to us by the management of the
Company with respect to entities outside the consolidated Group but covered in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Also refer to the Other Information paragraph of our main audit report which explains that the
other information comprising the information included in Board of Director’s report is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
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(xx)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Eirmpls Registration No.101248W/W-100022

Manish Gupta

Place: Delhi Partner
Date: May 26, 2022 Membership No. 095037

UDIN: 22095037AJRKWR6299
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Jubilant Generics
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Jubilant Generics
Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on thc internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “thc Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and proceduresthat
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Ejrm's Registration No.101248W/W-100022

Manish Gupta
) Partner
Place: Delhi Membership No. 095037
Date: May 26, 2022 »  UDIN: 22095037AJRK WR6299



Jubilant Generics Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

Notes
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3
Capital work-in-progress 3
Goodwill 4
Other ntangible assets 4
Intangibke assets under development 4
Right of use assets 37
Financial assets
i Investments 5(a)
i. Loans 5(b)
iii,. ~ Others 5(c)
Deferred tax assets (net) 6
Income tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets 7
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories 8
Financial assets
i Trade receivables 5(d)
ii. ~ Cash and cash equivalents 5(e)
ii. ~ Other bank balances 5()
iv. Loans 5(b)
v.  Other fmancial assets 5(g)
Other current assets 9

Total current assets
Total assets

INR i million

As at
3 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021_

7.445.41 7,716.66
642.99 287.01
1,371.36 1,371.36
284.86 522.17
3,346.89 3,568.33
115.12 176.69
4,055.00 4.055.00
3,255.39 3256.03
44.63 43.27
1,087.81 1,108.55
290 3.31
17.62 20.50
21,669.98 22,130.88
5,014.03 4,490.30
1,927.08 1,866.87
5.46 47.90
3.83 56.55
7.22 7.00
870.96 544.62
1,136.61 1,104.59
8,965.19 8,117.83
30,635.17 ~ 30,248.71
....Continued
2



Jubilant Generics Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

INR in million

Notes As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial labilities

i Lease Liabilities
Provisions

Other non-current labilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial kabilities

i Berrowings

i  Lease Liabilities
i.  Trade payables

Total auistanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises

‘Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

iv.  Other fmancial liabilitics
Other current liabilities
Provisions

Current t2x liabilities (net)
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

10(2) 25.80 25.80

25,350.54 25217.37

25,376.34 25,243.17

11(b) 71.47 137.52

13 313.53 325.38

(2 (a) 61.01 75.71

446.01 538 61

11(2) 640.00 200.01

11(h) 65.56 6040
11(c)

33.11 4326

2.394.73 2336.75

11(d) 685.99 536.11

12 (b) 894.58 1,175.72

13 93.05 70.92

5.80 43.76

4,812.82 4,466.93

5,258.83 5,005.54

30.635.17 30,248.71

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAL Figm Registration Number : 101243W/W-100022
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Manish Gupta
Partner
Membership No: 095037

Plce: Dehi
Date: 26 May 2022
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Jubilant Generics Limited

Statement of Profic and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

INR in million

For the year ended

For the year ended

Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue from operations 14 12,608.00 1453102
Other ncome 15 288.32 240.51
Total income 12,896.32 14,771.53
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 16 5.116.74 532321
Purchases of stock-m-trade 13731 88.60
Changes m inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade 17 (436.69) 163.94
and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 18 2,343.02 2,173.80
Finance costs 19 2598 19.43
Depreciation , amortisation and impairment expense 20 1,147.58 1277.16
Other expenses 21 4381.45 3,574.99
Total expenses 12,715.39 12,621.13
Profit before tax 130.93 2.150.40
Tax expense/(benefits) 22

- Current tax 40.64 392.91

- Deferred tax charge/(credit) 15.99 460.57
Total tax expense/(benefits) 56.63 853.48
Profit for the year 124.30 1,296.92
Other comprehensive income
Tiems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit oblizations 13.63 3.34
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclasssified
to profit or loss 2 (4.76) (1.17)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 8.87 2.17
Total other comprehensive income 3.87 2.17
Total comprehensive income 133.17 ~1,299.09
Eaming per equity share of INR 10 each 36
Basic (INR) 48.18 502.75
Dituted (INR) 43.18 502.75

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the fmancial statemerts

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICA! Fjm Registration Number : 101248W/W-100022

Manish Gupta

Pariner
Membership No: 095037

Place: Delhi
Date: 26 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Jubilant Generies Limited N
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
a) Equity share capital

INR i milion
Balance as at 1 April 2020 25.80
Issue of equity shares -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 25.80
Issue of equity shares -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 . 25.80
(b) Other Eguity (1)
— INR m million
Total reserves and
Reserves and surplus sHiplasitod 0“_‘" Total other equity
comprehensive
income
Capital e _mmf'es Retained earnings
o reserve premium - -
As at 1 Aprl2020 3.512.42 15.572.04 4,833.82 13,918.28 23,918.28
Profit for the year - - 12%6.92 1,296.92 1.296.92
Other comprehensive meome - 2.17 2.17 2.17
Total camnprehensive mcome for the vear - - 1299.09 1,299.09 1.299.09
As at 31 March 2021 3,512.42 15,572.04 6.132.91 __ 23217.37 235,217.37
Profit for the year - 124.30 124.30 124.30
Oiher comprabensive meoms - - 3.87 8.87 8.87
Totzl comprehensive income for the year - - 13317 133.17 133.17
As at 31 March 2022 3,512.42 15,572.04 6.266.08 25,350.54 25,350.54

(1) Refer note 10(b) for natire and purpose of wiber equity

The accempanying notes form an mitegral pant.of the (Tancil statements

As per our Teport of even date attached
For BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountanits

1CAL Figmi Registration Number : 101248W/W-100022

>
Manish Gupta

Parmer
Membership No: 095037

Place: Dehhi
Date: 26 May 2022
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Ramamuzthi Kumar
Whole-time Director
DIN: 09139426

Place : Noida
Date: 26 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jubilant Geneics Limited

Gurdedfisingh Sood
Whole-timz Director
DIN: 03383578

Place : Noida
Date: 26 May 2022
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Juhilant Generics Limited
Statemeant of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March 2022

INR in milllion

Forthe $‘car ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended

31 March 2021

A. Cash flows from operating actiy ities
Profit before tax

Adjusanents :

Depreciaton and amortisation expense
(Gaim)/loss on salke/disposal/discard of property, plant and equipment (net)
Fmance costs

Unrealsed foreign exchange loss

Allowance for expected credit loss

Interest mcome

Operating cash flows befare working capital changes

(Increase) in trade receivables, loans, other financal assets
(Increase) in inventories

(Decrease) i trade payablkes, other fnancial liahilitics, other
lmbilityss and provisions

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid (net of refinds)

Net cash (used)/generated from operating activities

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets (nchuding capital work-
mn-progress and ntangibke assets under develpment)

Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment

Investment in deposits

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activitics

C. Cash flows from financing activities #

Proceeds from short term borrowings (net of repayments)
Fimance costs paid

Payment of lease Iabiliries

Net cash generated/(used in) from financing activities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Add: cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note S(e))

180.93 2,150.40
1.147.58 1277.16
(83.24) 15.17
25.98 19.43
35.63 19.63
2472 1.25
{203.61) (218.97)
1,127.99 3,264.07
(467.41) (163.03)
(523.73) (373.01)
(158.84) (1575.67)
(21.99) 952.36
(76.19) (308.34)
(98.18) 644.02
(684.24) (847.97)
152.05 3.08
5272 (3.19)
200.64 221.63
(178.83) (621.45)
439.99 (799.17)
(38.19) (39.81)
(67.23) (53.58)
33457 (942.56)
(42.44) (919.99)
47.90 967.89
5.46 47.90

% Refer note 11{b} for changes m iizbiliics arisng from fmancing activities.

Note:

1. Statement of Cash Flows lias been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows”.

2. Bank balances of INR 3.83 million (Previous year INR 56.55 million) has restricted use.

3. During the vear, the Company paid i cash INR 3155 milfion (previous year INR 19.05 million) towards corporate soci\a‘l

responsibiliny (CSR) expendimire (ncladed n donation refer note 33).

The accompanving notes form 2n integral part of the fmancizl statements
As per ow report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICANm Regstration Number = 101248 W/W-100022
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Parmer
Membership Ne: 093037
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Jubilant Generics Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

1.

(884

Corporate Information

Jubilant Generics Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated on 25 November 2013 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is
incorporated to engage in the manufacture and supply of Generics (including Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients (APIs) and Solid Dosage Formulations). The registered office of the Company is situated at
Plot No 1A, Sector 16A, Institutional Area, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh 201301. During
the year 2020, the Company acquired the India Branded Pharmaceuticals (“IBP”) business from Jubilant
Pharmova Limited erstwhile Jubilant Life sciences Limited, which is a formulations business that caters
to the Indian market.

The Scheme of Arrangement (“the Scheme”) for demerger of the Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients
business undertaking of Jubilant Generics Limited (*JGL”) and vesting of the same with the Jubilant
Pharmova Limited (Ultimate Holding Company) on a going concern basis, with an appointed date of 1
April 2022 was approved by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (“the Tribunal™)
vide its order (“the Order”) dated 23 May 2022. The Company is in the process of filing the certified copy
of the Order from the Tribunal with the Registrar of Companies for registration in terms the requirements
under the Companies Act, 2013, to make the Scheme effective upon such filing.

Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial ycar.

(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance
These Ind AS Financial Statements (“financial statements™) have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified

under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian Rupees and are
rounded to the nearest million, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 26 May, 2022.
In accordance with Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company does not prepare
consolidated financial statements.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The standalone financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis,
unless otherwise stated

N



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(b) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Shect based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when:

o [t is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

o It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

» It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is treated as current when:
o [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e [t is due to be scttled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified a period of less than twelve months as its operating
cycle for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

(¢) Business Combinations

Business combinations (other than business combinations between common control entities) are
accounted for using the purchase (acquisition) method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the consideration transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange. The consideration transferred does not include amounts
related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships; such amounts are generally recognised in
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. The cost of acquisition also
includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
& contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at fair value at
the date of acquisition. Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are
expensed as incurred. The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value
of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain
purchase.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of
the shareholder that controls the Company are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at
the beginning of the earliest comparative periad presented or, if later, at the date that common
control was established: for this purpose comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities

A



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the ﬁ_naniial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

acquired are recognized at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves is preserved and
they appear in the financial statements of the Company in the same form in which they appeared
in the financial statement of the acquired entity. The differences, if any, between the
consideration and the amount of share capital of the acquired entity is transferred to capital
reserve.

(d) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets
(1) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
which includes capitalized finance costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment loss. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
The cost of an item of a PPE comprises its purchase price including import duty, and other non-
refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition of its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

Expenditure incurred on startup and commissioning of the project and/or substantial expansion,
including the expenditure incurred on trial runs (net of trial run receipts, if any) up to the date of
commencement of commercial production are capitalised. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a scparatc asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance
Sheet date, are shown under other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use
before the year end, are shown as capital work-in- progress.

(ii) Intangible assets
s Goodwill

Goodwill arising on business combinations is disclosed in the Balance sheet and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an asset.
With regard to other intemnally generated intangible assets:

- Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or
technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and T.oss as
incurred.

- Development expenditure including regulatory cost and legal expenses leading to product
registration/ market authorisation relating @ the new andior improved product and/or process
development capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible. fuure ceonomic benetits are probable. and the Company
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Jubilant Generics Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the yeur ended 31 March 2022

(i)

intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use the asset. The expenditure
capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable
to preparing the asset for its intended use, and directly attributable finance costs (in the same manner
as in the case of PPE). Other development expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as incurred.

- Intangible assets that are acquired (including implementation of software system) are measured
initially at cost.

- After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the
future economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.

Depreciation and amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on straight line basis on the original cost/ acquisition cost of assets or other
amounts substituted for cost of PPE as per the useful life specified in Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Act,
read with notification dated 29 August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, except for the
following classes of property, plant and equipment which are depreciated based on the internal
technical assessment of the management as under:

Category of assets Management estimate of useful|Useful life as per Schedule 11
life
Motor vehicles (Vehicle -Owned) 5 years 8 years
Computer servers and networks (mncluded
L . 5 years 6 years
m office equipment)
Dies and punches for manufacture of
} 1-2 years 15 years
dosage formulations !
Change parts for manufacture of dosage 5 years il S years

formulations
Employee  perquisite related assets
(except end user computers) {included in

5 years, being the period of

perquisite scheme 10 years

office equipment)
Leasehold improvements 10 vears Period of lease

Leasehold land which qualifies as finance lease is amortised over the lease period on straight line
basis.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Internally generated product registration 5 years
Rights S years
Software 5 years

Depreciation and amortization on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets added/ disposed
off during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period and adjusted if appropriate.

A .
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Jubilant Generics Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(e)

(H

(iv) Derecognition

A property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or
losses arising from disposal of a tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered
primarily through sale rather than through continuing use. Such assets, are generally measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Losses on initial classification as held for
sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Once classified as held for sale, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are no longer
depreciated or amortised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets under development
arc not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. The company’s other non-financial
asscts, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether therc is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (i.e. corporate assets) are
grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment Ioss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respeet of other assets for
which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at reporting date
whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a
reversal is made only to the extent that ihic assei’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount

P :
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

(¢) Financial instrument

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognirion and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measuvement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, tinancial assets are classified in four categories:

o  Debt instruments at amortised cost

¢  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

s Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
»  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the financial liability. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies
to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVOCT

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if the objective of the business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets. and the asset’s contractual cash flows

A’ 1 ‘ ‘: = !
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest carned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVPL

FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorisation as at amortiscd cost or as FVOCL, is classified as at FVPL. In addition, at initial
recognition, the Company may irrevocably elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortised cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces
or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all chan ges recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCTI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCIL. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCl to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss to retained earnings.

Equity mstruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments in subsidiaries and associate

Investments in subsidiaries and associate are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written
down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) modcl for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for frade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with
contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, EC'Lsare measured at an amount equal to the 12-month
ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those

/&J | v
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance
at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e.. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

® The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVPL if it is classified as held—for—trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign-exchange forward contracts to hedge
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the fair value is negative.

Offsetting
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(b)

1)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value except scrap, which is valued at net estimated
realisable value.

The Company uses weighted average method to determine cost for all categories of inventories except for
goods in transit which is valued at specifically identified purchase cost. Cost includes all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition inclusive of non-refundable (adjustable) taxes wherever applicable. The cost of work in progress
and manufactured finished goods include an appropriate share of variable and fixed production overheads.
Fixed production overheads are included based on normal capacity of production facilities.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-
in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products. Raw materials
and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost,
except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products
will exceed their net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-
by-item basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand (including imprest) and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrcunding the obligation.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured refiably.

/bl v,
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()

)

Contingent liability

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure 1s made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of products is recognised upon transfer of control of products to customers at the time of
shipment to or receipt of goods by the customers. Service income is recognised as and when the underlying
services are performed. The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time.

Any fees including upfront fees received in relation to contract manufacturing arrangements is recognized
over the period over which the company satisfies the underlying performance obligations. In respect of
outsourcing contracts for drug development with third party Clinical Research Organization (CRO),
revenue is recognized on the basis of actual cost incurred plus mark up as agreed with the customer under
each agreement.

Revenues are measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of tax collected from
customers and remitted to government authorities such as Goods and services tax (GST), sales tax, excise
duty, value added tax and applicable discounts and allowances including expected sales return etc. The
computation of these estimates using expected value method involves significant judgment based on various
factors including contractual terms, historical experience, estimated inventory levels etc.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue eamned over billings on contracts. Contract
assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional
right to receive cash and only passage of time is required as per contractual terms. Contract liabilities are
recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues. Contract liabilities relate to the advance received
from customers and deferred revenue against which revenue is recognised when or as the performance
obligation is satisfied.

Income in respect of entitlement towards export incentives is recognised in accordance with the relevant
scheme on recognition of the related export sales. Such export incentives are recorded as part of other
operating revenue.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Employee benefits
(i) Shori-term employee benefits: All employee benefits falling due within twelve months of the end of
the period in which the employees render the related services are classified as short-term employee
benefits, which include benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences, performance
incentives, etc. and are recognised as expenses in the period in which the employee renders the related

service and measured accordingly.

(ii) Post-employment benefits: Post employment benefit plans arc classified into d;ﬁned benefits plans
and defined contribution plans as under:

P
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(a) Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee's salary
and the tenure of employment.

(b) Provident fund

() The Company makes contribution to the recognised provident fund - "VAM EMPLOYEES
PROVIDENT FUND TRUST" (a multi-employer trust) for most of its employees in IndiaDuring the
year the Company transferred the balance in VAM EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND TRUST to
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and started to make contribution with Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner for all the employees with effect from 1 December 2021.This is treated as defined
contribution plan.

The Company's contribution to the provident fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
(i) Other long-term employee benefits:
Compensated absences

As per the Company's policy, eligible leaves can be accumulated by the cmployees and carried forward
to future periods to either be utilised during the service, or encashed. Encashment can he made during
service, on early retirement, on withdrawal of scheme, at resignation and upon death of the employee.
Accumulated compensated absences are treated as other long-term employee benefits.

(iit)  Termination benefits:

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a
present obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation.

Actuarial valuation

The Hability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term benefits at the end of the financial
year is accrued in the books of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each year of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the
market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having maturily periods
approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurinent gains and losses are recognised in the Statcment of Profit and Loss iu the period in which
they arise. Remeasurment gains and losses in respect of all d¢lined benefit plans arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial asswnptions e recognised in the period in which they occur, directly
in other comprehensive income. They are included in Other equity in the Statement of Changes in Equity
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and in the Balance Sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and loss as past
service cost. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised
when the curtailment or settlement occurs. Any differential between the plan assets (for a funded defined
benefit plan) and the defined benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability if it
is a deficit or as an asset if it is a surplus (to the extent of the lower of present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction in future contribution to the plan).

Past service cost is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-line basis
over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits are already vested
immediately following the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the past service cost is
recognised immediately i the Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost may be either positive
(where benefits are introduced or improved) or negative (where existing benefits are reduced)

(m) Finance costs

(n)

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Finance cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
finance costs. Finance costs that are directly attributable to the construction or production or development
of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other finance
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the finance costs eligible for capitalization. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method Ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the period of such borrowings.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCL

Current tax:

o Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount
of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

e Cumrent tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

e
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o Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
at the time of the transaction;

~ temporary differences related to freehold land and investments in subsidiaries, to the extent that
the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws
in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future
income tax liability.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable protits will be available against which they can be
used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reportin g date, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and Habilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultancously.

(o) Leases

Leases — Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contact involves the use of an identified asset;
(2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
the lease; and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use ot the asset.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land, buildings and vehicles which
typically run for a period of 3 to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. For certain
leases, the Company is restricted trom entering into any sub-lease arrangements. At the date of
commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
hability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessec, excent for leases with a term of twelve months
or less (short-term leases). For these short-term leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an
operaling expense on a straight-line basis over the e of the lease.
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Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities includes the options to extend or terminate the lease when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if
any, is recognised in the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates based on information available as at the date of
commencement of the lease. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension
or a termination option. Lease liability and right-of-use asset have been separately presented in the
Balance sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The
Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses
whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In
evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the
underlying asset to Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease
term reflects the current economic circumstances.

(p) Segment reporting

Board of Directors of the Company had been identified as the Chief Operating Decision maker (CODM)
as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. Operating Segments have been defined and presented
based on the regular review by the CODM to assess the performance of segment and to make decision
about allocation of resources. Accordingly, the Company has determined pharmaceutical as the only
reportable segment.

(q) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are presented
in Indian rupees.

(i1) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
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dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at Balance Sheet date exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, within finance costs, All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOC] are recognised in other comprehensive
income (OCI).

(r) Government grants

Grants from the govemnment are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that th ey are intended to compensate and presented within
other operating income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related asséts and presented within other operating income.

(s) Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
e the profit attributable to owners of the Company .
* by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per
share to take into account:

» the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity sharcs, and

¢ the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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(t) Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values arc catcgorised into different levels in a fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either  directly (i.e. as  prces) or indirectly  (ie. derived from  prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third
party information is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including
the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these financial
statements is included in the respective notes.

(u) Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes.

. Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets — Note 2(d)
» Valuation of inventories — Note 2(h)

» Recognition of revenue — Note 2(k)

+ Fair value measurement — Note 2(t) and 25

- Estimation of assets and obligations relating to employee benefits — Note 2(i) and 24

« Recognition and estimation of tax expense including dcferred tax :\T\""ote 2(n),6 and 22

« Estimated impairment of financial assets and non-financial dssers - Note 2(f) and 2(g) -
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* Recognition and measurement of contingency : Key assumption about the likelihood and magnmtude
of an outflow of resources — Note 30

» Lease term: whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise extension options — Note 2(p)
and 37

(v} The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-
19 on the carrying amounts of receivables, inventories, property, plant and equipment, goodwill and
intangible assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global
economic conditions, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements, has used
internal and external sources of information, including economic forecasts and estimates from market
sources, on the expected future performance of the Company. On the basis of evaluation and current
indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amounts of these
assets and does not anticipate any impairment to these financial and non-financial assets. However, the
impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process, given the uncertainties associated with its
nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions.

(w) Recent accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March 2022,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 1
April 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual
Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes
do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Group does not expect the amendment to
have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment
amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use.
Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Group does not
expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its
financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly
to the contract’. Costs that relale directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfi lling that
contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the Group does not expect the
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applics the 10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109
m assessing whether to derccognise a financial fiabilin hL Group decs not expect the amendment to have
any significant impact in its financial statements.

y
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Ind AS 116 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasechold improvements by
the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives
that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration. The Group
does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes:
(1) Refer note 31(a) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
(2) Refer note 19 for finance costs capitalised.
(3) Includes INR 68.54 in respect of research and development assets (previous year INR 23.01 million).
(4) Capital research and development expenditure aggregating to INR 64.18 million (previous year INR 30.91
million) incurred during the year included in additions to property plant & equipment/ capital work-in-progress.

Ageing detail of Tangible capital work in progress as at 31 March 2022 is as follows :

(INR in million)
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More than
1 year 3 years Total
Projects i progress 501.11 60.12 56.15 25.61 642.99
Ageing detail of Tangible capital work in progress as at 31 March 2021 is as follows :
(INR im million)
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than
- 1 year 3 years
Projects in progress 181.78 75.03 19.71 10.49 287.01

Project execution plans are modulated basis capacity requirement and priority assessment on an annual basis
and all the projects are executed as per rolling annual plan.

4. Goodwill, other intangible assets and intangible assets under development

INR in million
Internally
generated .
. : " product  Rights Sofiware  Total |Mtangibles
Description Goodwill . R assets under
registration/ (b) (c) (atbtc)
market development
- authorisation (a)
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2021 1371.36 2,725.22 15.81 27590  3,016.93 3568.33
Additions/adjustments (1) - 67.76 - 17.64 85.40 378.39
Deductions/adjustments {3) - (63.14) - - (63.14) (599.83)|
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2022 1,371.36 2,729.84 1581 _ 293.54 3,039.19 3,346.89)
l
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2021 - 2,286.11 15.81 192.84 2494.76 - |
Amortisation for the year - 225.88 - 54.12 280.00
Deductions/adjustments (3) - (20.43) S - (20.43) -
Accurulated amortisation as at 31 March 2022 . 2,491.56 15.81 246.96 2,754.33 -
Net carrying value as at&'\r[arch 2022 1_,371.36 238.28 = 46.58 284.86 3,346.89|

A
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the“ycz_lr_cril_e_d 31 March 2022

- - INR in million
Inte mally Intangibles
generated —
. . product  Rights Software Total
|Description Goodwill registration/ (b) © (atbic) under |
developme
market at
authorisation (a)
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2020 1,371.36 2,578.43 15.81 253.57 2,847.81 3.472.55
Additions/adjustments (1) - 146.79 - 22.33 169.12 524.09
Deductions/adjustments (3) - = - - - (428.31)
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2021 1,371.36 2,725.22 15.81 275.90 3,016.93 3.568.33
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2020 - 2,032.45 15.81 141.36  2,189.62 -
Amortisation for the year - 253.66 . 51.48 305.14 -
Deductions/adjustments (3) - . . -
| Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2021 - 2,286.11 15.81 192.84 2,494.76 -
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2021 1,371.36 - 439.11 - 83.06 522.17  3.568.33
Ageing detail of Intangible capital work in progress as at 31 March 2022 is as follows :
(INR in million)
Particulars Intangible capital work in progress for a period of
Less than More than
1-2 Years 2-3 Yea
I year ¢ e 3 years Total
Projects in progress 249.38 298.15 441.26 2358.10 3346.89
Ageing detail of Intangible capital work in progress as at 31 March 2021 is as follows :
(INR in million)
Particulars Intangible capital work in progress for a period of Total
Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than
1 vear 3 vears
Projects in progress 462.39 536.96 418.23 2150.75 3568.33

Project execution plans are modulated basis capacity requirement and priority assessment on an annual basis
and all the projects are executed as per rolling annual plan.
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Jubilant Generics Limited

Notes:

1

)

3)

4)

&)

Represents INR 67.76 million (previous year INR 146.79 million) in respect of research and development
assets.

Capital research and development expenditure aggregating to INR 378.39 million (previous year INR
514.74 million) incurred during the vear included in additions to Intangible assets/Intangible assets under
development.

The carrying value of internally generated product registration and other intangibles (inciuding intangible
assets under development) is reviewed annually and was last reviewed on 31 March 2022 and based on
prevailing market conditions, technical and financial assessment, INR 156.37 million (previous year INR
259.19 million) had been charged off during the year ended 31 March 2022 and included under depreciation
and amortization expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The estimate of value in use was determined
using a discount rate of 11.21% (previous year 11.55%). Further the company has sold intangibles under
development amounting INR 375.70 million (previous year nil) to its fellow subsidiary Jubilant Cadista
Pharmaceuticals Inc.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Cash Generating Units (CGU) which
represents the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, which is
not higher than the Company’s operating segments. Accordingly , the Company is considered as a single
CcGuU

The recoverable amount of the above cash generating unit was based on its value in use. The value in use of
these units was determined to be higher than the carrying amount and an analysis of the calculation’s
sensitivity towards change in key assumptions did not identify any probable scenarios where the CGU
recoverable amount would fall below their carrying amount.

Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the
CGU. The calculation was based on the following key assumptions:

i. The anticipated annual revenue growth and margin included in the cash flow projections are based on past
experience, actual operating results and the S-year business plan in all periods presented.

ii. The terminal growth rate of upto 0.5% (previous year: 0.5%) is considered for all periods presented,
representing management view on the future long-term growth rate.

iii. Discount rate considered is 11.21% (previous year: 11.55%) is considered for all periods presented, in
determining the recoverable amount of the CGU. The discount rate was estimated based on past experience

and industry’s weighted average cost of capital.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent the management’s assessment of future trends in the
industry and based on both internal and external sources.

Refer Note 19 for finance costs capitalized

A
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

5(a) Non-current investments

INR in million

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Investment in equity shares (at cost)
Unquoted investment (fully paid up)
(A) Subsidiary:

Jubilant Pharma NV 965.00 965.00
[13,900,000 (Previous year 13,900,000) equity shares of face value Euro 1
per share]
(B) Associate:
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 3,090.00 3,090.00
(200 (Previous year 200) equity shares with no par value]
Total non-current investments 4,055.00 4,055.00
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 4,055.00 4,055.00
5(b) Loans
INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current Non- current Current Non-
current
Unsecured, considcred good
Loan to related parties (Refer Note 29) 7.00 3,250.00 7.00 3,250.00
Loan to employees 0.22 5.39 6.03
Total loans 7.22 3,255.39 7.00 3,256.03
5(c) Others
o INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current Non- current Current N
current
Deposits accounts with maturity more than twelve months 0.23
from the reporting date- held as margin money . i ’
Security deposits - 44.63 - 43.04
Total others = 44.63 < 43.27

Vs
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Jubilant Generics Limited

Notes_(o t_he financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

5(d) Trade receivables

31 March 2022

INR in million
As at
31 March 2021

Unsecured and current
Trade receivables considered good

Receivables from related parties (Refer Note -29)

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Less: Expected credit loss allowance
Total trade receivables

Ageing for trade receivables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows :

1,343.84 1,590.12
583.24 276.75
33.90 10.20
(33.90) (10.20)
1,927.08 1,866.87

(INR in million)

Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 Months -

NotDue /sy mihs

1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years

Trade receivables

Undisputed Trade Recievable - Considered Good
Undisputed trade receivables — which
have

significant increase in credit sk
Undisputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

Dssputed trade receivables -
considered

good

Disputed trade receivables — which
have

significant increase in credit risk
Disputed trade receivables — credit
impaired

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade
receivables

1336 11 35863

238.91

17.54 058

082 0.59

More than 3

Total

Years

321 1954.98

1336.11 358.63

238.91

18.36

o
-
-

7.80 1960.98

Ageing for trade receivables outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is as follows :

Particulars

Outstauding for the following periods from due date ;’paymcnt

(33.90)
T 1927.08

(INR in million)

Less than

NokBue:  oNonths

6 Months -
1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More than 3 Total

Years

Trade receivables

Undisputed Trade Recievable - Considered Good
Undisputed trade receivables — which
have

significant increase i credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables — credit
impaired

Disputed rade receivables —
considered

good

Disputed trade receivables — which
have

significant increase in credit risk
Disputed trade receivables — credit
impaired

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade

receivables

125558 32793

260.30

0.82

3.42 514

1255.58 327.93

261.12

358 9.64

18.82

18 82 1,871.19

T 1877.07

(10 20)
T 1866.87
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended_Sl March 2022

5(e) Cash and cash equivalents

A;at
31 March 2022

INR in million

As at
31 March 2021

Balances with banks

- in current accounts 5.23 33.85
Cash on hand 0.11 0.42
Others
- funds in transit - 13.53
- Imprest 0.12 0.10
Total cash and cash equivalents 5.46 47.90
5 (f) Other bank balance
INR in million
o As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Deposits accounts with maturity up to twelve menths from the reporting

date- held as margin money S .
Total other bank balance (1) 3.83 56.55
(1) These have restricted use

5(g) Other current financial assets

INR in million

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Curre nt Current

Advances recoverable from related parties 669.74 332.72

Interest receivable from related parties 16.91 14.22

Insurance claim recoverable 131.74 145.95

Contract asset 38.92 42.18

Interest receivable 2.51 2.23

Others 11.14 7.32

Total other financial assets 870.96 544.62

6. Deferred tax

Deferred income tax reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of asset
and labilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for income tax purposes. Significant

component of the Company’s net deferred income tax are as follows:

7
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Jubilant Generics Limited

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Deferred tax assets

___INRinmilen
Provision for Expenditure Tax losses MAT Intangibles Lease Others Total
compensated allowed on actual  carried forward Credit Liability
absences and payment basis Entitle ment
— o gmatuity — . N o
As at 1 April 2020 ~97.81 - 29.31 1,407.43 1,196.34  458.13 17.89 13.69 3.250.61
(Charged)Credited:
- 1o statement of prafit and Joss 14,42 428 (616.31) 392.47 (137.34) 1.92 10.16 (330.39)
- 10 Other comprehensive mcame (117 . - - . . - < (117
As at 31 March 2021 B 111.06 33.59 791.13 1588.81 320.79 49.81 23.86 2919.05
(ChargedYCredited:
- 10 stalement of proftt and loss 4,93 213 {29.91) 40.46 (85.90) (16.57) 515 (78 7))
- to Other comprehensive income (4,76) - - - - - - (476)
As at31 March 2022 111.23 36.72 761.22 1625.27 234.89 33.24 29.01 2835.58

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Deferred tax liabilities:

INR i million

PPE, Difference in  Others Total
Intangibles and tax value and
Right ofuse  book value of
assets R&D CWIP/
Intangible and
Intangibles
under
development
As at1 April 2020 870.23 802.78 7.32 1,680.33
(Charged)/Credited:
- to statement of profit and loss 125.99 7.33 (3.15) 130.17
As at 31 March 2021 996.22 810.11 4.17 1,810.50
(Charged)/Credited:
- to statement of profit and loss 3.25 (62.04) (3.94) (62.73)
As at 31 March 2022 999.47 748.07 0.23 1,747.77
Reflected in the Balance Sheet as follows:
INR i million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deferred tax assets B 2,835.58 2,919.05
Deferred tax liabilities 1,747.77 1,810.50
Deferred tax assets, net: R 1,087.81 - 1,108.55

Deferred tax has not been recognized on temporary differences in relation to indexation benefit of investment
in subsidiaries and freehold land amounting to INR 303.08 million (previous year 240.10 millicn) and INR
4468 million (previcus vear 35.40 million) respectively, as the Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the tempdrary differences will nol reverse in

foreseeable future.

A

32



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

7. Other non-current assets

INR in million

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Capital advances 17.62 20.50
Total other non-current assets 17.62 20.50

8. Inventories

INR m million
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Raw materials* 1,555.20 1,577.98
Work-in-progress 2,074.26 1,862.18
Finished goods* 798.74 554.24
Traded goods 50.40 70.29
Stores and spares 439.77 314.30
Packing material 82.29 99.84
Others- process chemicals and fuels 13.37 11.47
Total inventories 5,014.03 4,490.30
*Goods n transit, included in above INR in million
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Raw materials 139.17 72.75
Finished goods 256.02 123.17
Total inventories 395.19 195.92
Total write down of inventories recognised during the vear 438.77 310.40

Cost of inventories (including cost of purchased products) recognised as an expense amounted to INR 6,637.37

million (previous year INR 8,622.14 million).

9. Other current assets

INR in million

- o As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Prepaid expenses 164.07 143.93
Recoverable from/ balance with government authorities 787.06 894.48
Advance to employees 9.16 3.21
Asset held for sale 14.14 -
Advance for supply of goods and services 162.18 62.97
Total other current assets 1,136.61 1,104.59

Via
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

10. Equity share capital and other equity

10(a) Equity share capital

INR in million
~ Asat As at
- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised N o
3,000,000 (Previous vear 3,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 130.00 30.00
30.00 30.00
Issued and subscribed -
2,579,665 (Previous vear 2,579,665) equity shares of INR 10 each 25.80 25.80
25.80 25.80
Paid up o
2,579,665 (Previous year 2,579,665) equity shares of INR 10 each o 25.80 25.80
25.80 25.80
Movements in equity share capital
" Asat31March2022  As at31 March2021
Number ~ INR in million Number INR in million
At the commencement of the period 2,579,665 25 80 2,579,665 2580
At the end of the period 2579665 25 80 2579665 2580

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value of INR 10 each.
Holder of each equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

-;:\t_comﬂcnc_en_lent of the vear and end ofthe period - As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Equity shares of INRI0 each fully paid-up held by Number % of total shargs Number % oftotal shares
snt Ph Limited, Sing: - the ng ]

Jubilsnt Pharma Limited, Singapore - the holding compérmy 579,665 100% 2579665 100%

(includine 6 shares beld omthy with 6 individuals)

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters:

At commencement of the year and end of the period As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Equity shares of INR10 each fully paid-up held by B Number % of total shares Number % of total shares
Jubilant Pharma Limied. Singa;;Fe - the hokding compamny N N
{ineluding 6 shares held jointly with 6 mdividuals)

2,579,665 100% 2,579,665 100%

10(b) Other equity

Nature and purpose of other equity
Capirtal reserve

Accumulated capital surplus not available for distribution of dividend and expected to remain invested
permanently. Represents difference between the consideration and carrying amount of net assets/liabilities
for transactions among entities under common control to transfer out/in of any business or shares of entities
under common control.

Securities premium

The unutilized accumulated excess of issuc price oy or face value on issue of shares. This reserve is utilized

in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
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Jubilant Generics Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

11(a) Current borrowings

__INR in million

Loans repayable on de mand
From banks

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Secured 640.00 200.01
Total current borrowings 640.00 200.01
Notes:

1. Working capital facilities (including cash credit) sanctioned by consortium of banks and financial

LI

=8

institutions are secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation, ranking pari-passu inter-se banks, of the
entire book debts, receivables and inventories, both present and future, of the Company. All working capital
loans are repayable on demand.

Short-term loans are availed in Indian rupees. Indian rupee loans carry interest rate ranging from 3.62% to
1.75% p.a. (Previous year interest rate ranging from 3.78% to 9.20%) p.a.

Inventory and Trade receivables with a carrying amount of INR 5,014.03 million (previous year INR
4,490.30 million), and INR 1,927.08 million (previous year INR 1,866.87 million) respectively are provided
as security against borrowing at year end.

The Company had availed fund based and non-fund based working capital facility of INR 5,000 million
(previous year INR 5,000 million) from a consortium of banks. The facility is secured by way of
hypothecation of the company's entire stock of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable
stores and spares and such other movables current assets including book-debs, receivables, both present and
future, on a first charge basis ranking pari passu with other participating consortium member banks.

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current borrowings are:

(INR in million)
Notes As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Financial assets o

First Pari Passu charge

Receivables 5(c) 1,927.08 1,866.87
Inventories 8 5.014.03 4,490.30
Total current assets pledged as security 6.941.11 6,357.17

-,

]

During the previous year, the Company had availed an overdraft facility of INR 50.00 million from a bank,
against a fixed deposit of INR 52.95 million placed with the bank.

Al
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for_the year ended 31 March 2022

11(b) Reconciliation of mevements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

INR in million
o - Other movements o
As at  Financing INE Finance costs Finance costs aSadlt
31 March 2020 cash flows fzange expensed capitalised SllEREh
leases B i - P o 2021
Finance lease Babilities 195.77 (53.58) 55.73 . - 197.92
Short term loans repayablc on demand (net) 999.18 (799.17) . - 200.01
Interest accrued 0.11 (89.81) - 19.43 70.29 0.02
Total 1,195.06  (942.56) 55.73 19.43 70.29 _397.95
INR in million
o Oth_e_r movements
. ) New . . As at
As at  Financing Finance costs Finance costs
31 March 2021 cash flows finance expensed  capitalised SilsMiareh
leases B 5 2022
iabiiti . 6
Leasalabifties (previousiyear:mance 197.92 (67.23) 634 . . 137.03
Jease liabilities)
Short term loans repayable on demand (net) 200.01 439.99 - - - 640.00
Interest accrued 0.02 (38.19) - 25.98 14.00 1.81
Total 397.95 334.57 6.34 25.98 14.00 778.84
11(c) Trade payables
INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current
Trade payables

-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(Refer Note 35)

-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises

and small enterprises
Total trade payables

Amount payable to related parties included in above (Refer Note 29)

A

33.11 43.26
2394.73 2336.75
2.427.84 2,380.01
327.37 447.95
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows :

(INR in milion)

Particulars _Olll_ﬁ__t:ln(linﬁ for the followirg periods from duc date of payment B
Not Due e 1-2 Years 2-3 Years SIORE ik o

1 Year Years
MSME=* o 16.90 16 04 002 0.12 33.08
Others 696.02 824.65 60.80 17.98 15.74 1,615.19
Disputed dues MSME* - - .
Disputed dues others - . . - . ,
712.92 840.69 60.82 18.10 1574  1648.27
Expenses accrued 779.57
Total 2427.84

Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is as follows :

(INR m million)

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment B
] Total
Not Due Less than 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More tl':an 3 ota
1 Year Years
MSME* 3741 5.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 43.26
Others 944.56 744.83 22.69 23.99 82.88 1,818.95
Disputed dues MSME* . : - - .
Disputed dues others = - - . ) 5
981.97 750.68 22.69 23.99 82.88  1862.21
Expenses accrued 517.80
Total 2380.01
*MSME as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
11(d) Other current financial liabilities
INR in million
As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.81 0.02
Security deposit 2.70 1.00
Capital creditors* 137.99 67.39
Employee benefits payable 148.83 150.63
Other payable to related parties 394.66 317.07
Total other current financial liabilities 685.99 536.11
* Includes payable to Micro, Small & Medium enterprises INR 2.66 Million (previous year nil)
12(a) Other non-current liabilities

INR in million

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Contract liabilities 18.28 26.82
Deferred ncome - Government grant 42.73 48.89
Total other non-curre nt liabilities 6101 75.71

12(b) other current liabilities

INR in million

o As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Contract labilities B 719.13 1,055.45
Deferred income - Government grant 11.72 9.89
Statutory dues payables 163.73 110.38
Total other current liabilities "\ 894.58 117572

s
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

13. DProvisions

. INR m million

B As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current Non-current Current ey

current

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 24) 82.33 313.53 61.04 325.38
Other provisions 10.72 . 9.88 :
Total provisions 9305 313.53 70.92 325.38

14. Revenue from operations

INR in million

For the year ended

31 March 2022

For the year ended

31 March 2021

Sale of products

- Finished goods 10,026.40 12,335.02
- Traded goods 2,190.15 1,793.01
Sale of services 3.29 47.13
Other operating revenue 388.16 355.86
Total revenue from operations 12,608.00 14,531.02

Disaggregation of revenue:

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market, service lines and sales

channels.

INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Primary geographical markets

India 2,864.35 2,433.24
Americas and Europe 6.766.80 9,384.59
Rest of the world 2,588.69 2357.33
Total 12,219.84 14,175.16
Major product/service line

API 5,637.89 6,599.36
Dosage 6,581.95 7.575.79
Total 12,219.84 14,175.15
Sales Channels

Wholesalers/distributors 6.581.95 7,575.79
Manufacturers 5,637.89 6,599.36
Total 12,219.84 14,175.15

A
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended_E-_l March 2022

Contract Balances

o INR in million

For the year ended For the year ended

- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivables 1.927.08 1,866.87
Contract assets 38.92 42,18
Contract liabilities _ 737.41 1,082.28

The amount of INR 1,026.39 million (previous year INR 1,632.94 million) recognised in contract liabilities
at the beginning of the period has been recognised as revenue for the current year.

Unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance obligations are subject to variability due to several factors
such as terminations, changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations of the estimates, economic factors
(changes in currency rates, tax laws etc). The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied
(or partially satisfied) performance obligations, excluding those where original expected duration of one
year or less, amounts to INR 62.34 million (previous year INR 81.87 million) majority of which is expected
to be recognised as revenue in next 2 years.

15. Other income
_INR in million

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Interest mcome 203.61 218.97
Net foreign exchange gain - 20.36
Gam on sale/disposaldiscard of property, plant and equipments (net) 83.24 -
Other items 1.47 1.18
Total other income 288.32 240.51

16. Cost of materials consumed
INR in million

For the yearended For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Raw materials consumed 5,116.74 5,323.21

Total cost of materials consumed 5,116.74 5,323.21

e
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17. Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Opening balance
Work-m-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade

Total opening balance

Closing balance
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade

Total closing balance

Total changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-
trade and work-in-progress

18. Employee benefits expense

INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

1,862.18 1,895.85
554.24 730.74
7029 24.06
2,486.71 2,650.65
2074.26 1,862.18
798.74 554.24

50.40 70.29
2,923.40 2,486.71
(436.69) 163.94

INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Salaries, wages, bonus, gratuity and allowances
Contribution to provident fund and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

19. Finance costs

2,064.10 1,902.46
106.79 99.07
172.13 172.27

2,343.02 2,173.80
INR in million

Interest expense*
Other borrowing costs
Total finance costs

For the year ended

31 March 2022

For the year ended

31 March 2021

22.66 18.10
- 3.32 1.33
25.98 19.43

* Includes interest INR [0.39 million under section 234B and 234C of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (previous

year INR 2.92 million)

Note:

-

)

(1) Finance costs on general borrowings amounting to INR 14 million (previous year INR 75.55 million)
has been capitalised during the year with a capitalisation rate of 0.84% (previous year 2.74%).
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20. Depreciation , amortisation and impairment expense

INR in million

For the ye;r ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 665.66 670.53
Amortisation of right of use assets (Refer Note 37) 45.55 42.30
Impairment of intangible assets (including intangibles under 156.37 259.19
development)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 4) o 280.00 305.14
Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 1,147.58 1,277.16
21. Other Expenses :
INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Power and fuel 687.99 583.37
Consumption of stores and spares and packing materials 708.17 641.61
Processing charges 841.87 497.06
Renta] charges (refer note 29 & 37) 5.90 1.01
Rates and taxes 166.93 122.59
Insurance 55.30 49.83
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion 82.75 19.26
Travel and conveyance 50.01 31.03
Repairs and maintenance

Plant and machinery 165.76 130.34

Buildings 16.26 8.56

Others 118.27 91.68
Office expenses 53.35 65.12
Vehicle running and maintenance (refer note 29) 6.86 7.28
Printing and stationery 9.04 7.43
Telephone and communication charges 13.65 12.99
Staff recruitment and training 13.07 13.96
Donation (including corporate social responsibility expenditure)

30.55 84.53

(refer note 33)
Payments to auditors (refer note 21 (a)) 2.36 1.41
Legal and professional fees 904.68 687.93
Freight and forwarding (including ocean freight) 257.17 335.98
Directors' sitting fees 0.36 0.41
Subscription 23.49 17.58
Bank charges 9.42 9.10
Claims and other selling expenses 66.99 72.98
Commission on sales 51.70 61.98
Net foreign exchange loss 14.63 -
Allowance for expected loss / Irrecoverable advances (net) 24.72 1.25
Loss on sale/disposaldiscard of property, plant and equipments 15.17
(net)
Miscellaneous expenses 0.20 3.595
Total other expenses 4,381.4§ 3,574.99

/g,.
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21(a): Details of payments to auditors (excluding applicable taxes and including out of pocket expenses)

- INR in million
For the vear ended For the year ended
- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Payment to auditors
As auditor:
Audit fee 1.06 1.06
In other capacities
Certification and other service fees 1.30 0.35
Total payments to auditors . 2.36 1.41

22. Income tax expense

The major components of income tax expenses for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are:

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit or loss section
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge for the year 40.46 393.07
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 0.18 (0.16)
40.64 392.91
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax on profits for the year 60.80 461.38
Adjustments i respect of deferred tax of previous years {4.36) (0.81)
56.44 460.57
MAT Credit
MAT credt on profits for the year (40.45) -
Adjustment in respect of MAT credit of previous years - -
Total MAT credit tax expense (40.45) -
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and 56.63 853.48
Loss
OCI section
Tax related to ttems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 4.76 1.17
Income tax charged to OCI 4.76 1.17

A
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Reconciliation between average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate for 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021:

B INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Profit before income tax 180.93 2.150.41

At India's statutory income tax rate of 34.944% (31 Mar 2021

’ 2 51.

34.944%) 63.22 Pl

Effect of non-deductible expenses and exempt income 15.34 33.97

E(fect of change in tax rate on opening deferred tax balance - 85.28

Effect of lower tax rate on temporary difference of current year (27.05) (18.10)

Effect of prior year re-assessments (4.18) 0.89

Others 9.30

Income Tax expenses reported in the Statement of Profit

FhiPLEE 56.63 853.48

23. Research and development expenditure incurred (excluding cost of acquired intangibles, finance cost,
depreciation and amortization expense) comprises:

INR in million

Revenue expenditure For the year ended For the year endcd
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Cost of material consumed 212.62 168.40
Employee benefits expense 417.96 404.62
Utllities- power 36.76 35.28
Other expenses 291.77 _337.26
Total revenue expenditure (A) 959.11 945.56

Out of the above total expenditure, the amount of R&D expenditure transferred to Intangibles/ Intangible assets
under development is INR 366.38 Million (previous year INR 448.42 million). This should also be read in
corjunction with other disclosures made in the financial statements.

Capital expenditure (equipment)

INR in million
. . For the year ended For the year ended

t d
Capital expenditure 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Equipment 64.18 30.08
Total capital expenditure (B) 64.18 30.08
Total (A+B) 1,023.29 975.64

24. Employee benefits in respect of the Company have been calcuiated as under:

(A) Defined Contribution Plans

I'he Company has certain defined contribution plan such as employee state insurance, cmployee pension
scheme, wherein specilied percentage is contributed to them. During the year, the Company has contributed

following amounts to:
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- (INR in milfion)

For the year ended For the year ended

- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Employer’s contribution to provident fund (refer note 24 (b) (i) 24.40 -
Emplover's contribution to employee’s pension scheme 1995 33.00 33.58
Employer's contribution to employee state insurance 2.06 _ 2.18

(B) Defined Benefit Plans

i. Gratuity

In Accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits” an actuarial valuation has been carried out in respect of
gratuity.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an
independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The discount rate
assumed is 7.2% p.a. (Previous year 6.8 % p.a.) which is determined by reference to market yield at the
Balance Sheet date on Government bonds. The retirement age has been considered at 58 years (Previous
year 58 years) and mortality table is as per IALM (2012-14) (Previous year JALM (2012-14).

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation is 10% p.a. for first three years
and 6% p.a. thereafter (Previous year 10% p.a. for first three years and 6% p.a. thereafter), taking into account
of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
market.

The plans assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India in respect of gratuity scheme for
certain employees of the Company. The details of investments maintained by Life Insurance Corporation
are not available with the Company, hence not disclosed. The expected rate of return assumed on plan assets
is 6.80 % p.a. (previous year 6.80% p.a.).

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

- - - (INR in million)
As at As at

- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 260.72 230.59
Current service cost 36.23 35.68
Acquisition adjustment 1.78 3.81
Interest cost 17.73 15.21
Actuarial (gain)/loss (13.63) (3.04)
Benefits paid (25.70) (21.53)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 277.13 260.72

n
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Fair Value of Plan Assets**:

(INR in million)

As at As at

- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Plan assets at the beginning of the year 32.07 36.26
Expected return on plan assets 2.12 246
Contribution by employer 2.84 2.12
Actual benefits paid (6.64) (9.08)
Fund management charges (0.72) 0.31
Plan assets at the end of the vear 29.67 32.07

** In respect of certain employees of Nanjangud manufacturing unit of the Company.

Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:

. . (INR i million)

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 277.13 260.72
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year (29.67) (32.07)
Net liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet 247.46 228.65

Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss under employee benefit expense:

(INR in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current service cost 36.23 35.68
Interest cost 15.55 12.75
Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 51.77 4843

Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income:

(INR in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Actuarial loss/(gain) on arising from change in demographic

; (1.27) 0.41
assumption
Actuarial loss/(gain) on arising from change in financial assumption (5.20)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on arising from experience adjustment (7.17) (3.45)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on plan assets . (0.31)

Company’s best estimate of contribution during next year is INR 59.16 million (previous year INR 55.81
million).

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, 100% of the plan assets were invested in insurer managed funds.

e
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Sensitivity analysis

R (INR in million)
Particulars 31 March 26022 31 March 2022 .
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase
Sensitivity level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
Impact on defined benefit 9.15) 9.73 9.74 (9.25)
- . (INR in million)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase
Sensttivity level 0.5% mcrease 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
Impact on defined benefit (6.29) 6.61 6.59 (6.34)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on
a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.

ii, Provident Fund:

The Company made monthly contributions to the recognised provident fund - "VAM EMPLOYEES
PROVIDENT FUND TRUST" (a multi-employer trust) for most of its employees in India, for the period
starting with 1 April 2021 till 30 November 2021, post 1 December 2021 these contributions are made with the
regional provident fund authority for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is required to
contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.

The Company has contributed INR 48.30 million to Provident Fund Trust (previous year: INR 69.61million)
during the year.

(C) Other long term benefits (Compensated absences)
(INR in million)
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 148.39 157.76

25. Fair value measurements

o o B o (INR in million)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Level of
Note hicrarchy FveL  Fvoct ATOTSC pyvpL  pvocr ATOTEC
— R — BT — o d cost d cost
Financial assets (excluding investment in subsidiaries)
Trade receivables (a) . 1927.08 - - 1,866.87
Loans © A . 326261 . . 350607
Cash and cash equivalents (a) . 5.46 . 47.90
Other bank balances (a) c . 383 - . 56.55
Other fmancial assets o o - () S = 870 96 . 54462
Tatal financial assets E - 6,069.94 - - 5,822.01
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (a) : 640.00 200 01
-
Trads payables (a) G 2427.84 : . 238001
Other fwancizl Liabiities (a) : 685.59 ; 53611
Lease lability - o {a) - - 127403 ] - 2 197 92
Total financial liabilitics - 3.890.86 - 3.514.05
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Valuation techniques and significant unobse rvable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques and the significant unobservable inputs used in determination of fair value of the
Level 3 financial instruments not measured at fair value:

o i Inter-relations hip
Significant between key

Type Valuation technique unobservable unobservable inputs
inputs and fair value
meds ure ment
Discounted cash flows: Adjusted The estimated fair
Other financial assets The valuation model discount rate:  value would increase
considers the present value  6.75% (decrease) if the
Loans to related parties of expected receipts (2021: 6.50%) adjusted discount rate
Note:

(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to
respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

(b) Fair valuation of non-current financial assets has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as there is
no significant difference between carrying value and fair value.
(c) Fair value of loans is as below ;

(INR m million)
Level Fair Value
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Loans 3 3.274.58 3.121.04

There are no transfers between level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2021.

26. Financial risk management
A. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework.

The Company, through three layers of defense namely policies and procedures, review mechanism and
assurance aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations. The Audit committee of the Board with top management oversees the
formulation and implementation of the Risk management policies. The risks are identified at business unit level
and mitigatton plan are identified, deliberated and reviewed at appropriate forums.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

- credit risk (see (i));
- liquidity risk (see (ii)); and = %

ﬂ» a7

- market risk (see (iii)).
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i. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
loans and investments. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.

Trade receivables and other financial assets

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The
Company’s review includes external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency
information, industry information and business intelligence. Sale limits are established for each customer and
reviewed annually. Any sales exceeding those limits require approval from the appropriate authority as per
policy.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are compared according to their credit characteristics, including
whether they are an individual or a legal entity, whether they are an institutional dealers or end-user customer,
their geographic location, industry, trade history with the Company and existence of previous financial
difficulties.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables:

Based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/ current facts available in relation to
default and delays in collection thereof, the credit risk for trade receivables is considered low. The Company
estimates its allowance for trade receivable using lifetime expected credit loss. The balance past due for more
than six month (net of expected credit loss allowance) is INR 33.90 million {(Previous year INR 84.29 million)

Company’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables using provision matrix is as follows:

(INR in million)
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Gross Al]owam:.e Net carrying Gross carrying Allowancfe Net carrying
carrying for credit = for credit
srmoNtit losses® amount amount losses amount
Not due 1,344.36 24.46 1,319.90 1255.21 1.24 1253.97
0-50 days 249.83 5.89 243.94 313.12 0.37 312.75
90-180 days 110.25 0.51 109.74 214.66 0.19 214.47
180-270 days 147.61 0.25 147.36 1.76 0.31 1.45
270-360 days 87.86 0.22 87.64 57.57 0.29 57.28
More than 360 davs 21.07 2.37 18.50 34.75 7.80 26.95
- 1.960.98 33.90 1,927.08 1.877.07 1020 1,866.87
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables are as follows:
) INR i million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 10.20 13.70
{Less) / Add: Reversed /Provided during the year (net of reversal) 2370 (3.50)
Balance at the end of the year - o 33.90 10.20

* Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring
bankruptcy or failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company.

A,
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Expected credit loss with respect to other financial assets:

With regards to all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, management believes
these to be high quality assets with negligible credit risk. The management believes that the parties from which
these financial assets are recoverable, have strong capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default
is negligible and accordingly no provision for excepted credit loss has been provided on these financial assets.
Break up of financial assets other than trade receivables have been disclosed on balance sheet.

ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company’s treasury department is responsible for managing the short term and long term liquidity
requirements. Short term liquidity situation is reviewed daily by the treasury department. Longer term liquidity
position is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken according
to the situation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts
exclude contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

S - (INR m million)
Contractual Cash flows (1)
31 March 2022 Carrying Total Within 1 More than
Amount year 1 year

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings 640.00 640.00 640.00 -

Lcasc liability 137.03 137.03 65.56 71.47

Trade payables 2,427.84 2427.84 2427.84 -

Other fmancial liabilities 685.99 685.99 685.99 -
3,890.86 3,890.86 3,819.39 71.47

?ﬁé?)ntracmal cash flow excludes interest payable
{INR in million)
Contractual Cash flows (1)

31 March 2021 Carrying Total Within 1 More than
Amount year 1 year

Non-derivative financial liabilities o

Borrowings 200.01 200.01 200.01 :

Lease liability 197.92 197.92 60.40 137.52

Trade payables 2,380.01 2.380.01 2.380.01 e

Other fimancial liabilities 536.11 536.11 536.11 -
3.314.05 3,314,05 3,176.53 137.52

€)] Contractual cash flow excludes interest pay;ble

iii. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such ax fGrefen exchange rates and interest rates that will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments The objective of market risk
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management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising
the return.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which
sales, purchases and borrowings are denominated. The currencies in which the company is exposed to risk are
USD, Euro, CAD and Other.

The Company follows a natural hedge driven currency risk mitigation policy to the extent possible. Any residual
risk is evalualed and appropriate risk mitigating steps are taken.

Exposure to currency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the management
of the Company is as follows:

(INR m million)

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
o USD Euro CAD Other USD Euro CAD Other
Trade and other receivables 1,874.56 191.66 32.87 139.03 1,407.05 205.26 92.02 73.63
Cash and cash equivaknts - - - - 13.53 - - -
Trade and other payables (1,581.53)  (73.89) (25.58) (3517 (1.289.28) (152.88) (91.34) (19.75)
Negstatement offinancial 203.03 11777 729 10386  131.30 52.38 0.68 53.88

pusition exposure

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening/weakening of the USD, Euro, CAD and others against all other currencies
at 31 March would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency
and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact on forecast sales and purchases.

(INR in million)
Profit or loss (before tax) OCI (before tax)
Strengthening Weakening rengthening Weakening

31 March 2022

USD (1% movement) 2.93 (2.93) - -
Euro (1% movement) 1.18 (1.18) - -
CAD (1% movement) 0.07 (0.07) - -
Other (1% movement) 1.04 (1.04) - =
31 March 2021

USD (1% movement) 1.31 (1.31) - -
Euro (1% movement) 0.52 (0.52) - -
CAD (1% movement) 0.01 (0.01) - -
Other (1% movement) 0.54 {0.54) - .

Interest rate risk

[nterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at
both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest raterisk is nréasured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes
in variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are pribeipaily denominated in INR 'with a mix of
fixed and floating rates of interest. The Company has exposure 1o inierest rate risk, arising principally on
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changes in base lending rate. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between
fixed and floating rate borrowings.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the
management of the Company is as follows:

The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings and floating
rate loan given:

INR in Million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Floating rate borrowings 640.00 200.01
Floating rate loan given to ultimate holding company & fellow subsidiary .257.00 3.257.00

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate
liabilities assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the year-end was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Company’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2022 would decrease / increase by INR 1.60 million (previous
year decrease / increase by INR 0.50 millions). This is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

27. Segment reporting

Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision maker (CODM) as
defined by Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”. Operating Segments have been defined and presented based
on the regular review by the CODM to assess the performance of segment and to make decision about
allocation of resources. Accordingly, the Company has determined pharmaceutical as the only reportable
segment.

Information about Geographical segments:

The geographical information analyses the Company’s revenue (other than other operating revenue) and non-
current assets by the Company’s country of domicile and other countries. In presenting the geographical
information, segment revenue has been based on the geographical location of customers and segment assets
were based on the geographical location of the assets.

INR in million
For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Primary geographical markelts
India 2,513.02 2.081.91
Americas and Europe 7.116.92 9.734.71
Rest of the world 2,589.90 - 2358.54
Total 12,219.84  14,175.16

/}_’
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) o INR m million
As at As at
B ﬂMarch 2022 31 Mar_c_h 2021

Non-current assets (by geographical lo cation:)fassets)*
Within India 16,527.18 16,967.33

16.527.18 16,967.33

*Non-current assets are excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Major customers comprising more than 10% of total revenue

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals inc. 2,082.79 3,960.62
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 1416.26 1.003.91

28. Capital management
Risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

e safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for its
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

e maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing
ratio:

Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances) divided by ‘Total
equity’ (as shown in the Balance Sheet).

The gearing ratios were as follows:

INR m million
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Net debt 630.71 95.56
Total equity 25.376.34 25,243.17
Net debt to equity ratio 0.02 0.00

29. Related Party Disclosures

i) Related parties of the Company

TUltimate Holding Company AL
Jubilant Pharmova Limited '

A .



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Holding Company
Jubilant Pharma Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries (including partnership firm)
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC

Jubilant Biosys Limited

Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.

Jubilant DraxImage Inc.

Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc.

Jubilant Life Sciences (USA) Inc. (Till February 1, 2021)
Jubilant Clinsys Inc.

Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Limited

Jubilant Draximage Radiopharmacies Inc.

Jubilant Draximage Limited

Jubilant Infrastructure Limited (Till February 1, 2021)
Jubilant Pharma South Africa Pty Limited

Jubilant Business Services Limited

Trialstat Solutions Inc.

Jubilant Pharma UK Limited

Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership

Subsidiary
Jubilant Pharma NV

Step-down Subsidiaries
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV
PSI Supply NV

Other Entities

Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited

Vam Employees Provident Fund Trust

Jubilant Enpro Private Limited

Jubilant Bhartia Foundation

Jubilant Ingrevia Limited

Jubilant Foodworks Limited (with effect from July 19, 2021)

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (Sanghat) (with effect from March 31, 2022y,
Jubilant Sports Car Pvt. Limited (with effect from October 21, 2021)

Directors

Ms. Sudha Pillai

Mr. Pramod Yadav

Mr. Anant Pandc (Joined on 14th May 2019) Resigned elfective from 31 March 2022

Mr. Jasdeepsingh Gurdeepsingh Sond

Mr. Arvind Chokhany — Appointed as Director with effect from June 3, 2021

Mr. Ramamurthi Kumar — Appointed as Whole time Direcior with effect from April 01, 2022
Mr. Christopher Stanely Krawtschuk — .s\ppoimed,éégDix':eﬁéfdr with effect from June 3, 2021

N
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

M N B INR i million
sl IPaniculars o i For the year ended| For the year ended
IDest:ription of Transactions: Bt iEen 22z S aacnz 0]
1 Sales of goods and services: o o
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. - 2,082.79 3,960.62
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. - 1,416.26 1,003.91
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC. 0.18 -
PSI Supply NV 239.43 260.13
Jubilant Biosys Ltd. - 1.69
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Ltd 47.15 -
3,785.81 5,226.35
2 Rental and other expenses:
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 80.21 79.38
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 10.78 0.80
90.99 80.18
3 Purchase of goods and services:
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 90.79
Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Limited 3.01 2.57
Jubilant Clinsys Inc. J 14.97
Jubilant Biosys Limited 20.19 1.97
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Ltd 16.38) 11.63
Jubilant Business Services Limited 60.05 66.14
Jubilant Pharma UK Ltd 17.66 -
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 2.49 -
119.78 188.67
4 Interestincome
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 197.38 186.85
Jubilant Draximage Limited 0.42 0.46
197.80 187.31
5 Sale of Merchandise Exports from India Scheme scrip:
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 5.00
B ! 5.00
6 Sale of Intangible assets & Intangibles under devole pment o |
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 522.61 .
- B 522.61 -

A
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

Sr.No

iParticulars

i

' ncscn’_ptidﬁ of Transactions:

For the year ended
31 March 2022

INR m million

For the year ended
31 March 2021

7 |[Recovery of expenses:
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership 20.58, 20.51
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC 5131 46.94
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 524
{Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc 29.33| 19.08]
|Jubilant Biosys Limited 11.68 21.56
Jubilant Draximage Inc. 87.05 ~ 53.08]
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 73.54 65.46
[Jubilant Draximage Radiopharmacies Inc. 16.57 13.81
Jubilant Pharma Limited 1.48 1.43
Jubilant Business Services Limited 0.23 0.27
Jubilant Enpro Private Limited = 0.73
|Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited 5.98 0.06
|Jubilant [ngrevia Limited - - 1.00
\Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV - 1.33
: 297.75 250.50
8 Purchase of property plant and equipment:
\Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 3.73
| Jubilant Sports Cars Private Limited 11.40 -
11.40, 3.73
9 Reimbursement of expenses: |
Jubilant Cadista Phanmaceuticals Inc. 84.37| 83.43
Jubilant Draximage Inc. 0.03| 0.10
|Jubilant Biosys Limited - 0.83
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 150.74 134.73
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV 51.63 81.13
[PSI Supply NV 2.68| 0.83
Jubilant Pharma Limited 96.85 ~ 69.63
Jubilant Pharma Holdnes Inc. 291.44 317.14
Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Limited 1.33] -
Jubilant Business Services Limited 0.02| 0.35
{Jubilant Pharma South Africa Pty Limited 1.08 0.12
|Jubilant Infrastructure Limited ] 0.03
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 129.87 17.87
Jubilant Food Works Limited 0.92
Jubilant Life Sciences (Shanghai) Ltd 27.11 #
1 “ 838.07 706.24|

)
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20622

INR m million

Sr.Ne Particulars For the year endedI For the year ended
: _ 31 March 2022/ 31 March 2021
:Description of Transactions:

10 Donations: 1
{Jubilant Bhartia Foundation 28.50; 10.20
' 28.50/ 10.20

11 Remuneration and Related Expenses*: i ]

Mr. Jasdeep Singh Sood 20.40 16.47
Mr. Anil Srivastava ) - 8.51
- 2040 2498
12 Sitting fees:
Ms. Sudha Pillai 0.36 0.41
0.36 0.41
13 Company's Contribution to PF Trust : |
Vam Employee Provident Fund Trust 48.30 69.61
48.30 69.61
INR m million
Sr.No Particulars As at

31 March 2022|

31 March 2021

l Amount Qutstandings:

Trade payables:
Jubilant DraxImage Inc. 0.07 0.02
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership 0.35 49.47
Jubilant HollisterStier LL.C - 40.15
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 59.56 106.36
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 149.23 150.11
Jubilant Biosys Limited 5.98 0.85
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV 39.56] - 54.19]
Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Limited 1.10| 1.16
PSI Supply NV 0.88| 20.77
Jubilant Business services Limited 0.59| 20.48
| Jubilant Pharmma SA (Pty) Ltd 3.69 1.46
Jubilant Pharma Limited 28.37 -
Jubilant Life Sciences (Shanghai) Ltd 27.11
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 6.88 -
Jubilant Pharma UK Ltd 4.00 2.93
327.37 447.95
2 Other payables:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 394.66/ 317.07|
394.66 317.07
] |Advance from customers -
| Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 4 560.17 960.13
560.17 960.13
4 |Employee benefits payable |
[Vam Employees Provident Fund Trust ) 16_.372
' . 16.37|

; l

-

56



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

INR m millien

fSr.No _lﬁalﬁcula_r_s_ N As at
- - 31 March 2022] 31 March 2021
5 Interest receivable: B )
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 16.77 14.04
{Jubilant Draximage Limited 0.14 0.18
! - ) 1691 14.22
|6 Receivable against inter corporate deposit
\Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 3,250.00 3250.00
[Jubilant Draximage Limited 7.00 700
| 3,257.00 3,257.00
7 Trade receivables:
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 303.49 58.33
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV - 21.86
PSI Supply NV 221.04 196.56
Jubilant Biosys Lmmited 10.12 -
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Ltd 48.59 -
583.24 276.75
8 Other receivables:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 546.35 16.74
Jubilant Biosys Limited 1.53 5.13
Jubilant Draximage Inc. 31.35 60.21
Jubilant Draximage Radiophannacies Inc. B - 8.16 7.70
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC 20.54 34.89
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership 14.32 54.62
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. - 25.50 140.20
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 10.24 10.25
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited | 6.09 0.50
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited | 547 1.25
Jubilant Enpro Private Limited = 1.16
Jubilant Pharma Limited 0.18 0.92
B 669.73 333.57
9 | Loan to Jubilant Draximage Limited amounting to INR 7 million was extended for a period of 1 year |

during the current year.

* As the liabilities for the gratuity and compensated absences are provided on an actuarial basis, and
calculated for the company as a whole, the said liabilities pertaining specifically to KMP are not known and

hence, not included in the above table.

Breakup of remuneration to key management personnel were as follows:

(INR i million)

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

) 2022 2021
Short tenn employment benefits 19.56 23.93
Post employment benefits 0.84 1.05

N
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the ﬁn_ancial statements for tlle year ended 31_ _March 2022

30. Contingent liabilities to the extent not provided for:

Claims against the Company, disputed by the Company, not acknowledged as debt:

- - (INR in million)

As at 31 March As at 31 March

2022 2021

Service Tax 0.79 0.79
Central Excise 7.83 7.87
Customs 4.44 26.53
Goods and Service Tax 11.18 11.18
Others 153.31 142.08

Including claims in respect of business acquired from Jubilant Pharmova Limited (formerly known as
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited), though the litigations may be continuing in the name of Jubilant Pharmova
Limited (formerly known as Jubilant Life Sciences Limited), however any liability arising in future relating
to these disputes will be borne by the Company.

Additionally, the Company is involved in other disputes, lawsuits, claims, governmental and/ or regulatory
inspections, inquiries, investigations and proceedings, including commercial matters that arise from time to
time in the ordinary course of business.

The Company believes that none of these matters, either individually or in aggregate, are expected to have
any material adverse effect on its financial statements.

In July 2021, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“USFDA™) placed the Roorkee facility under import
alert, which restricts supplies to the USA from the Roorkee facility. However, the USFDA exempted certain
products from the import alert subject to certain conditions. The Company continues to engage with the
USFDA and take all necessary steps, including comprehensive assessment and engaging independent
consultants, to ensure further controls to resolve the import alert at the earliest and ensure Current Good
Manufacturing Practices {CGMP) compliance for the Roorkee facility. No other regulatory agency so far
suggested or recommended similar action for any other market and/or product. Manufacturing and supply
of pharmaceutical products is continuing from Roorkee facility to all markets and for non-restricted products

to the USA.

The above does not include all other obligations resulting from claims, legal pronouncements having
financial impact in respect of which the Company generally performs the assessment based on the external
legal opinion and the amount of which cannot be reliably estimated.

31. Commitments as at period end
a) Capital Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account {net of advances) is INR 404.46
million (previous year INR 271.45 million).

b) Other Commitments:

Export obligation undertaken by the Company under EPCG scheme to be completed over a period of six
years on account of import of Capital Goods at concessional import duty and remaining outstanding is INR
385.54 million (previous year INR 78.42 million). Similarly, export obligation under Advance License
Scheme/DFIA scheme on duty free import of specific raw materials. remaining outstanding is INR120.02
(previous year INR 311.86 million). SRl

P~
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

32. Disclosure pursuant to section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of unsecured loans to group

33.

34,

35.

disallowance as a deductible expendinee under the MSMED Act

companies [Refer note 29]:

o - INR m millien
Purpose of term loan 31 March 31 March
2022 2021
o General business purpose and -
mterest rate
Outstanding as at the beginning of the period between 5.25% to 6.75% p.a. 3257.00 3,257.00
Outstanding as at the end of the period (Previous vear 5.50% to 6.50% i o 3,257.00 3.257.00
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expense
(INR in million)
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Prescribed CSR expenditure as per Section 135 of the Companies 20,55 19.05
Act, 2013
Details of CSR spent during the period
a) Construction / acquisition of any asset - -
b) On purposes other than {a) above (1) B 30.55 19.05

(1) Included in Donation — Refer note 29

Govemment grant recoverable INR 22.78 miillion (Previous year INR 129.27 million) and Government grant
recognized INR 53.65 million (Previous year INR 187.53 million) in Statement of Profit and T .oss,

Micro, Small and Medium Entcrprises

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding
for more than 45 days as at the end of period. The information as required to be disclosed in relation to Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information available with the Company.

INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end

. 33.08 42.91
of the period
The interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the end of the period
The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 (MSMED Act), along with the amount of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the period
The amount of nterest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the period) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act
The amount of mierest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
the peried
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in

0.03 0.35

0.03 0.35

the succeeding veurs, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of

I .
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

36. Earnings per share

For the year ended

For the year

IO '31 Marche;g;(:
Proftt for basic and dilu-tcgc;ni_ng-s per share of INR 10 each INR in mitlicn a 124.30 1296.92
Weighted average no. of shares outstanding during the period Nos 25,79,665 25,79.665
Basic (INR) INR 48.18 502.75
Dituted {(INR) INR 48.18 502.75
37. Leases
Leases under Ind AS 116 for the period ended 31 March 2022
The details of the right-of-use assets held by the Company is as follows:
INR m million
Operating Operating Finance
Description Building Vehicle Vehicle =
(atbtc)
(a) (b) (c)
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2021 269.55 1.94 10.27 281.76
Additions/adjustments 4.94 0.00 1.40 6.34
Deductions/adjustments (8.36) - - (8.36)
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2022 266.13 1.94 11.67 279.74
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2021 101.00 1.36 2.7 105.07
Amortisation charge for the period 56.12 0.57 2.86 59.55
Deductions/adjustments - - E -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2022 157.12 1.93 5.57 164.62
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 109.01 0.01 6.10 115.12
Net carrying value as at 1 April 2021 168.55 0.58 7.56 176.69
INR in million
Operating Operating Finance
. i i . Total
Desecription Building Vehicle Vehicle (a+btc)
(a) b @©
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2020 219.56 1.94 19.44 240.94
Additions/adjustments 49.99 0.00 5.74 55.73
Deductions/adjustments - - {14.9D) (14.91)
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2020 269.55 1.94 10.27 281.76
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2020 46.49 0.68 11.00 58.17
Amortisation charge for the period 54.51 0.68 4.38 59.57
Deductions/adjustments - - (12.67) (12.67)
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2021 101.00 1.36 2.71 105.07
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2021 168.55 0.58 7.56 176.69

# INR 14 million (previous year INR 17.27 million) amortisation capitalised during the period,

-
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss:

i INR m million
For the year ended For the year ended
'31 March 2022 '31 March 2021

Interest on lease liabilities # 14.92 ©19.69
Rental expense relating to short term leases 5.90 1.01
Total 20.82 . 20.70

#INR 2.39 million (Previous year INR 5.26 million) interest has been capitalised during the period.

Amount recognised in statement of cash flows:

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
'31 March 2022 '31 March 2021

Total cash outflow for leases (67.23) (53.58)
Total (67.23) (53.58)

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to new lease liabilities is 7.20% (previous year
9.16%).

38. The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as
required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law
requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in
the process of updating the documentation for the specified domestic transactions entered into with the specified
persons and the intcrnational transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year
and expects such records to be in existence before the due date of filing of income tax return. The management
is of the opinion that its specified domestic transactions and international transactions are at arm’s length so

%, that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of
tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

Vil
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Jubilant Generies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

40. The Scheme of Arrangement (“the Scheme™) for demerger of the Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients
business undertaking of Jubilant Generics Limited (“JGL”) and vesting of the same with the Jubilant
Pharmova Limited (Ultimate Holding Company) on a going concern basis, with an appointed date of 1 April
2022 was approved by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (“the Tribunal™) vide its
order (“the Order”) dated 23 May 2022. The Company is in the process of filing the certified copy of the
Order from the Tribunal with the Registrar of Companies for registration in terms the requirements under the
Companies Act, 2013, to make the Scheme cffective upon such filing.

41. Transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560
of Companies Act, 1956: .
= - \ o+« (INR m million)

Name of struck off company Nature o'f Balance outstanding ].!elatlonshlp
Transaction with the struck
As at 31 March As at 31 March  off company, if
. 2022 2021 any
- Advance for
Rachana Rubbers Private Limited supply of goods 0.60 0.00
and services

42. Additional Information :

a) No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

b) The Company has not been declared as willtul defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

¢) The Company has not entered any transactions with the companics struck off under section 248 of the

Companies Act,2013, or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 except as disclosed in financial statements
(refer Note 41).

d) There are no transaction which has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

e) There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

f) There are no funds which have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company or
1) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

g) There are no funds which have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall:

i) directly or indircetly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (*
Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or
i) Provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Ii.) The Company (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)

does not have any Core investment Company.
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Jubilaat Generics Limited
Notes to the ﬁnaﬂ:ial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

43. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified to confirm to current period’s classification.

For BSR & Co.LLP For and on behal-t: Ethe Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Jubilant Generics Limited
ICAl Frm Registration Number.: 101248W/W-100022

B
Manish Gupta Rat?m%\mhi Kumar
Parmer Director Whole-time Director
Membership No: 095037 DIN: 09139426 DIN: 03383578
Place: Noida Place: Noida Place: Noida
Date: 26 May 2022 Date: 26 May 2022 Date: 26 May 2022
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